Christiansburg Planning Commission
Minutes of August 3, 2015

Present: Matthew J. Beasley
Harry Collins
David Franusich
Steve Huppert
Hil Johnson
T.L. Newell
Virginia Peeples
Joe Powers
Craig Moore, Chairperson
Jennifer D. Sowers, Vice-Chairperson
Nichole Hair, Secretary Nom-Veting

Absent: Ann Carter

Staff/Visitors: Tabitha Proffitt, staff
Cindy Wells, Montgomery County
Kevin Conner, Gay and Neel, Inc.
Steve Semones, Balzer and Associates, Inc.
Todd Robertson, Stateson Homes
Mr. and Mrs. Walter Blubaugh, 345 Roudabush Drive
Kathryn Dowling, 200 Revolution Circle
Arthur Wilson, 220 Revolution Circle
Paul and Pam Hoag,151 Patriot Way

Chairperson Moore called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Christiansburg Town
Hall at 100 E. Main Street, Christiansburg, Virginia.

Public Comment.

Chairperson Moore opened the floor for public comment.

Doug Kane, 94 Providence Blvd stated that he and his wife have lived in
Christiansburg for 22 years. He appreciated what the Planning Commission and
Town Council do for the Town of Christiansburg, and that it is a wonderful place to
live.

With no further comments Chairperson Moore closed the floor for public comment.

Approval of meeting minutes for July 20, 2015.

Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion. Commissioner Beasley made a
motion to approve the Planning Commission meeting minutes. Commissioner
Johnson seconded the motion, which passed 9-1. Commissioner Newell abstained,
as she was not present at the last meeting.



August 3, 2015 page 2

Planning Commission public hearing for a Conditional Use Permit Amendment request
by Kevin D. Conner, agent for Stateson Homes, LLC and Cambria Crossing, LLC at
355, 365, 375, 385, 395 Roudabush Drive, 500, 510, 520, 530, 535, 540, 545, 550, 555,
560, 565, 570, 575, 580, 585, 590, 595, 600, 605, , 610, 615, 620, 625, 630 Dewdrop
Lane, and 130, 140, 150, 160, 170, 180, 190, 200, 210, 215, 220, 225, 235, 245, 255,
265, 275, 285, 295, 305, 315, 325, 335, 339 Phoenix Boulevard N.W. (tax parcels 435 —
((15)) — 98-123, 465 — ((38)) — 18-27, 33-46, and 465 — ((39)) — 95-97) in the MU-1
Mixed Use: Residential-Limited Business District.

Chairperson Moore introduced the public hearing.

Mr. Kevin Conner addressed Planning Commission. Mr. Conner gave a brief history
regarding Cambria Crossing. Mr. Conner provided the Planning Commission with
examples of the proposed changes. Mr. Conner clarified the zoning is a MU-1 —
Mixed Use: Residential-Limited Business with a Conditional Use Permit for
residential use. Mr. Conner stated the request is not to change to business use.

Mr. Conner detailed the lots for this request on the public hearing map. Mr. Conner
indicated Lot 95 is a lot affected by the request for the reduced setback from the
street right-of-way. Mr. Conner stated the current Planned Housing Regulations
require a 10 foot front yard setback and a 15 foot side setback from the side road.
Mr. Conner stated he has never seen a jurisdiction where the side setback is greater
than the front setback. Mr. Conner stated the request is to decrease the side
setbacks on the corner lots from 15 feet to 10 feet. Mr. Conner added the second
amendment would apply to projections from all dwelling types, such as eaves,
fireplaces, and cornices. Mr. Conner stated these projections would be allowed to
project 2 feet into the yard.

Mr. and Mrs. Walter Blubaugh, 345 Roudabush Drive, stated they live adjacent to
one of the lots in the application. Mr. Blubaugh stated he is opposed to allowing
projections into the side yard because the side setback is only 5 feet. Mr. Blubaugh
explained the total distance between his house and another home on this lot would
be 10 feet. Mr. Blubaugh stated other homes have fireplaces on the rear of the
houses and he would like that to be considered instead of in the side yard.

With no further comments Chairperson Moore closed the public hearing.

Planning Commission public hearing for Town Council’s intention to adopt an ordinance
amending Chapter 42 “Zoning” of the Christiansburg Town Code to have Section 42-
164(a)(4) read as follows: The overall dwelling unit density shall not exceed twenty (20)
dwelling units per gross acre.

Chairperson Moore introduced the public hearing.

Ms. Hair stated Mr. Steve Semones, who is in attendance, has made this request.
Ms. Hair added a draft of the ordinance amendment has been provided.



August 3, 2015 page 3

Planning Commission public hearing for Town Council’s intention to adopt an ordinance
amending Chapter 42 “Zoning” of the Christiansburg Town Code to have Section 42-
164(a)(4) read as follows: The overall dwelling unit density shall not exceed twenty (20)
dwelling units per gross acre — (continued)

Mr. Semones addressed the Planning Commission and noted this request and two
other requests are all related. Mr. Semones stated the code amendment being
requested would only apply to Planned Housing Developments. Mr. Semones stated
under the current Planned Housing Developments in the R-3 Multi-Family
Residential District, the development allows for 10 units per acre. Mr. Semones
added the Planned Housing Development process requires a Conditional Use
Permit, which could provide the flexibility to go up to 20 dwelling units per acre with
the amendment.

Chairperson Moore stated the code amendment would impact all of town not just a
single development. Chairperson Moore added the request is not just associated
with any one property or development.

Chairperson Moore asked if there was anyone that wished to speak on this
amendment to the ordinance. A citizen expressed concern about amending the
Code to double the density in developments. Chairperson Moore stated the
amendment is part of the Planned Housing Development portion of the Zoning
Ordinance which would still require a Conditional Use Permit. Chairperson Moore
stated as part of the Conditional Use process, the Planning Commission may add
conditions most suitable for each Conditional Use Permit. Chairperson Moore stated
the process could allow the Planning Commission and applicants negotiate back and
forth to achieve what is the best use of land for the community as well as the
immediate neighbors.

Commissioner Collins inquired if the Code amendment is permitted, then the density
would be allowed without a Conditional Use Permit. Ms. Hair stated the Planned
Housing Development specifically requires a Conditional Use Permit or conditional
zoning request. Ms. Hair added the density would be up to 20 units per acre and the
Planning Commission and Town Council could condition the number of units per
acre.

Commissioner Collins inquired if the Town had any existing developments with 20
dwelling units per acre. Ms. Hair stated she recalls one development with a density
greater than 10 units per acre but that was in the B-3 General Business District. Ms.
Hair added the development has not been constructed.

Chairperson Moore addressed the public asking if there were any further comments.
With no further comments Chairperson Moore closed the public hearing.



August 3, 2015 page 4

Planning Commission public hearing for Town Council’s intention to adopt an ordinance
in reqgards to a rezoning request by Balzer and Associates, agent for Stateson Homes
on property on the northern of Quin W. Stuart Boulevard N.W. (an approximately 9.5
acre portion of tax parcel 435 — ((A)) — 40 and tax parcel 405-((A))-31) from A
Agriculture to R-3 Multi-Family Residential. The property contains approximately 10
acres and is scheduled as residential in the Future Land Use Map of the Christiansburg
Comprehensive Plan.

Chairperson Moore introduced the public hearing.

Mr. Steve Semones addressed the Planning Commission. Mr. Semones requested
to discuss both the rezoning request and Conditional Use Permit request together.

Chairperson Moore stated the agenda includes a public hearing for a rezoning
request and a Conditional Use Permit request by the same applicant for the same
property. Chairperson Moore added the Conditional Use Permit request is
contingent upon the rezoning request and that there will still be two public hearings
to address each one for this process.

Mr. Semones stated Todd Robertson with Stateson Homes, would be assisting in
presenting. Mr. Semones detailed the location of the property. Mr. Semones stated
a rezoning request and Planned Housing Development was approved for a single
family residential development adjoining this property. Mr. Semones stated that last
year a lot was discussed on the timing and that there were concerns that 76 houses
would be popping up within the next year. Mr. Semones stated Mr. Robertson is
here to ask for a multi-family development as a Planning Housing Development. Mr.
Semones stated the development plans for approximately 16%2 dwelling units per
acre. Mr. Semones added the density is tied in with the Code amendment change
that was just discussed and the conditional use permit that will be discussed next.
Mr. Semones stated the project itself is proposed to be a luxury multi-family
development and it is apartments not townhomes, not duplexes, not tri- or quad-
plexes like the Villas at Peppers Ferry. Mr. Semones added he and Mr. Robertson
had a successful meeting last Thursday night, July 30 2015, with approximately 42
residents of the Villas at Peppers Ferry Villas. Mr. Semones added hey had a great
discussion and were able to answer many questions.

Mr. Huppert requested clarification from Mr. Semones about the start date for
construction of the single family residences adjoining this proposal. Mr. Semones
stated the hope was to begin in the fall but may be held off until plans are approved.
Mr. Semones stated if the site plan was approved in the next 60-90 days, then
construction may begin in the fall depending on the weather. Mr. Huppert indicated
it could be next spring before construction could begin on the single family
residences. Mr. Semones confirmed.

Mr. Semones provided detail of the proposed multi-family residential development.
Mr. Semones stated there are a couple different building sizes, open space, a club
house and a pool that would be in the development. Mr. Semones added all the
buildings would be 12 unit buildings.



August 3, 2015 page 5

Planning Commission public hearing for Town Council’s intention to adopt an ordinance
in regards to a rezoning request by Balzer and Associates, agent for Stateson Homes
on property on the northern of Quin W. Stuart Boulevard N.W. (an approximately 9.5
acre portion of tax parcel 435 — ((A)) — 40 and tax parcel 405-((A))-31) from A
Agriculture to R-3 Multi-Family Residential. The property contains approximately 10
acres and is scheduled as residential in the Future Land Use Map of the Christiansburg
Comprehensive Plan — (continued).

Mr. Semones added the proposed development would meet all the minimum Zoning
requirements, expect for the request for a higher density with a Conditional Use
Permit. Mr. Semones detailed the layout of the proposed development. Mr.
Semones discussed the previous issue of a traffic light at Quin W. Stuart Blvd. and
Peppers Ferry Road N.W. Mr. Semones stated he felt the Town has good traffic
data and the applicant is committed to working with the Town to help facilitate a
traffic signal at that intersection if the Town feels it is appropriate.

Mr. Todd Robertson addressed the Planning Commission. Mr. Robertson stated the -
development would consist 0of168 luxury class-a apartments. Mr. Robertson added
the exterior elevations would be very architecturally appealing from all sides. Mr.
Robertson stated the exterior would be of mainly hardy plank siding and stone to
give it its upscale look. Mr. Robertson stated there would be luxury features inside
such as granite counter tops and fireplaces. Mr. Robertson stated a question came
up at the neighborhood meeting regarding parents purchasing a unit for a college
student. Mr. Robertson explained the only thing that could be done in that situation is
mandate that the person that qualifies for the apartment must live in that apartment.
Mr. Robertson stated the same theme will be carried from the Villas at Peppers
Ferry and into the apartment community as well as the single-family homes.

Commissioner Collins inquired when the Planning Commission could expect to have
the information on the Town’s traffic study. Mr. Semones stated Assistant Town
Manager Wingfield had indicated the results of the study would be available late
summer or early fall. Mr. Semones stated the applicant is willing to work with Town
in regards to a solution for the intersection.

Commissioner Collins inquired why the applicant is requesting to amend the Town
Code to allow 20 dwelling units per acre, when the development proposes 16 V2
units per acre. Mr. Semones stated it did not make sense to request a Code change
to 17 units per acre. Mr. Semones added he had spoken with staff and came to the
conclusion of requesting 20 dwelling units per acre.

Kathryn Dowling, 200 Revolution Circle, stated an informational meeting was held on
July 30, 2015 as Mr. Semones indicated where around 45 people attended. Ms.
Dowling stated the meeting resulted in many good questions being made and
answered, such as will there be onsite management and the answer was yes. Ms.
Dowling noted the general tone after the meeting was very positive. Ms. Dowling
stated the class-a luxury apartments would fit in well with the future land use, while
both meeting the needs of the Villas at Peppers Ferry and the Town.



August 3, 2015 page 6

Planning Commission public hearing for Town Council's intention to adopt an ordinance
in regards to a rezoning request by Balzer and Associates, agent for Stateson Homes
on property on the northern of Quin W. Stuart Boulevard N.W. (an approximately 9.5
acre portion of tax parcel 435 — ((A)) — 40 and tax parcel 405-((A))-31) from A
Agriculture to R-3 Multi-Family Residential. The property contains approximately 10
acres and is scheduled as residential in the Future Land Use Map of the Christiansburg
Comprehensive Plan — (continued).

Ms. Dowling stated this was something that she and her neighbors felt was very
important. Ms. Dowling added the multiple-family rezoning plan is designed to
enhance the previously approved single-family home development and by doing so
again fits in well with the Villas at Pepper Ferry.

Ms. Dowling stated that both parties acknowledge a traffic survey currently is under
way for a stoplight. Ms. Dowling stated the combined 246 new residents with an
average of two cars per unit would significantly warrant a stoplight with the increased
traffic from 500 cars in a very concentrated area. Ms. Dowling stated traffic safety
i.e. a stoplight or some other alternative traffic mechanism must be considered as a
condition to the success of any planned residential rezoning.

Arthur Wilson, 220 Revolution Circle, mentioned he stood before Town Council last
year in reference to the traffic issue at Quin W. Stuart Blvd. and Peppers Ferry
Road. Mr. Wilson stated he would like to submit an alternative of a traffic circle to be
put in instead of a traffic signal. Mr. Wilson explained a traffic circle may offer a
reasonable alternative and would probably be a better benefit to the area.

Commissioner Huppert asked Mr. Wilson if what he was referring to as a traffic
circle was a round-a-bout. Mr. Wilson confirmed he was referring to a round-a-bout
and stated it should not interfere with the traffic since they shouid be slowing down

anyway.

Joe Chase, 100 Revolution Circle, stated he originally was opposed to the idea of a
round-a-bout but the more he has thought about it he believes it would be a very
good alternative and seconded Mr. Wilson’s recommendation for a traffic circle. Mr.
Chase stated there are a lot of older people that live at the Villas at Peppers Ferry
and they are concerned every time they go out on Peppers Ferry Road. Mr. Chase
stated that traffic is the major concern of many of the residents in the Villas at
Peppers Ferry.

Mr. Paul Hoag, 151 Patriot Way, stated what is not easily seen from the maps being
displayed is the topography of the land. Mr. Hoag stated one of his concerns is in the
event of a rain storm where is all the water going to go. Mr. Hoag stated that the
Villas at Peppers Ferry is downhill from everything. Mr. Hoag stated his concern is
not only the run-off from the proposed development but from the single family
homes.

Mrs. Pam Hoag, 151 Patriot Way, supported the idea of a round-a-bout to slow down
the traffic on Peppers Ferry.



August 3, 2015 page 7

Contingent on the above item, Planning Commission public hearing for a Conditional

Use Permit request by Balzer and Associates, agent for Stateson Homes for a planned

housing development on property on the northern of Quin W. Stuart Boulevard N.W. (an

approximately 10 acre portion of tax parcel 435 — ((A)) — 40 and tax parcel 405-((A))-31)

in the R-3 Multi-Family Residential District.

Chairperson Moore introduced the public hearing. Chairperson Moore asked the
applicant to come forward to discuss the Conditional Use Permit request.

Mr. Semones stated the main reason for the Conditional Use Permit is to allow for a
Planned Housing Development and that he misspoke earlier and wanted to clarify
that on the application, they have a maximum 18 dwelling units per acre, but the
number on their drawings is 16 %2 dwelling units per acre. Mr. Semones stated the
allowed building height in R-3 is 35 feet but the application is for 40 feet. Mr.
Semones stated the project should meet 35 foot requirement; however it would be
close depending on how the Town wants to measure, therefore the request is for the
40 feet for building height. Mr. Semones read through the proffers for this request:

1.) The property shall be developed in substantial conformance with the Master
Plan submitted July 14, 2015.

2.) The property proposed for R-3 zoning shall only be utilized for multi-family
residential use,

3.) The construction traffic shall strictly prohibit using the private roads in the
Villas of Peppers Ferry,

Mr. Semones stated these proffers are similar to the proffers submitted last year for
the single-family development.

Commissioner Huppert stated Mr. Semones mentioned earlier that the single-family
development is behind schedule and would be beginning construction next Spring.
Mr. Semones stated construction could begin this Fall or next Spring based on when
the final plans are approved. Commissioner Huppert stated his main question was if
this project gets approved would construction begin.

Mr. Robertson stated he would be seeking a HUD financing tool for luxury
apartments and this is an 18 month process from the time they would get the
rezoning approved. Mr. Robertson explained construction would be about 2 years off
from the start. Mr. Semones added it would probably be an 18-24 month build out
once that gets started. Commissioner Huppert clarified it could about four years
before build out. Mr. Robertson stated it would be a minimum of 3 years but
confirmed it would be a 3-4 year process.

Ms. Hair stated the public hearing for Town Council will be on August 25" 2015 at
7:00 PM.

Commissioner Huppert inquired if the single family homes Mr. Robertson is building
will be built on demand. Mr. Robertson stated their business model is to presell all
their homes before they start construction.



August 3, 2015 page 8

Contingent on the above item, Planning Commission public hearing for a Conditional
Use Permit request by Balzer and Associates, agent for Stateson Homes for a planned
housing development on property on the northern of Quin W. Stuart Boulevard N.W. (an
approximately 10 acre portion of tax parcel 435 — ((A)) — 40 and tax parcel 405-((A))-31)
in the R-3 Multi-Family Residential District — (continued).

Mr. Robertson stated a model home will be on site and 6-8 floor plans will be
offered. '

Commissioner Collins requested clarification between requesting 20 units per acre
and developing 18 units per acre. Mr. Semones stated the Code amendment being
requested would allow Planning Commission and Town Council to consider up to 20
dwelling units per acre. Mr. Semones continued that their request in their application
shows a maximum of no more than 18 dwelling units per acre; however on the
concept plan shows for 162 dwelling units per acre.

Chairperson Moore asked the Planning Commissioners if there was any additional
information the applicant needed to bring back to them for the next meeting.

Commissioner Newell inquired if the comments relative to the traffic study, traffic
light, or roundabout is beyond the scope on what this body will consider from these
requests. Ms. Hair stated this was correct and that the Town is aware there will need
to be something done there. Ms. Hair added the traffic is being studied with the
consideration of the park being developed and this project as well. Ms. Hair added
this was the first she had heard of a traffic circle being proposed and that she would
bring that to the attention of the Town’s Administration.

Commissioner Collins inquired if someone working with the traffic study could come
to the next meeting. Ms. Hair stated that she would check and see who on the
Town'’s staff is assisting with the traffic study. Ms. Hair added the Town is working
with a consultant on this project but would find some information or have somebody
come to the next meeting.

Commissioner Franusich inquired if the Planning Commission was allowed to attach
a memo to their recommendation to Town Council that says this is not part of their
recommendation but that it is a concern since traffic related issues are outside of this
request. Ms. Hair stated the Planning Commission comments would be part of the
record in the meeting minutes and those minutes are shared with Town Council.
Commissioner Franusich added he wanted an option to indicate the Planning
Commission has a concern in the matter. Ms. Hair stated Town Council and staff is
very aware that there is a concern about traffic and trying to address that in the best
way possible to meet the needs of the developments coming in as well as the park
land. Ms. Hair stated she would gather as much information as possible from staff or
have somebody come in to discuss this matter if needed.

Commissioner Collins inquired how the park and road system would line up with a
roundabout. Ms. Hair indicated she was unsure. Ms. Hair stated she would bring
this to the attention of administration for consideration.



August 3, 2015 page 9

Discussion by Planning Commission.

Commissioner Powers inquired if the Planning Commission were going to discuss
these public hearing items further tonight or if this was their one opportunity to
discuss this. Chairperson Moore stated it did look like Planning Commission would
continue to discuss tonight. Chairperson Moore stated that the public hearing had
been closed but Planning Commission discussion would be held.

Commissioner Franusich inquired if there are currently regulations for projections
into the yard. Ms. Hair stated any portion of the structure, such as eaves, is
considered part of the main structure and would need to meet the minimum setbacks
for the main structure. Ms. Hair explained an example of a bay window would
project outside of the actual structure or a gas fireplace extending out past the main
structure and that is what they have asked for.

Commissioner Franusich inquired if the applicant is requesting to have projections
eliminated from the requirements of the main structure. Ms. Hair confirmed this was
correct and the applicant is requesting to allow projections 2 feet into the yard.
Commissioner Franusich stated the drawing presented shows a projection of 8
inches. Ms. Hair explained the request is for a maximum of 2 feet.

Commissioner Powers inquired if the changes would apply to just the lots being
requested. Ms. Hair stated the CUP amendment would only apply to those lots listed
in the request. Commissioner Powers stated that as far as the projections were
concerned they would not be applied to any of the other lots. Ms. Hair confirmed
again that it would only apply to the lots being requested.

Chairperson Moore stated the Planning Commission could condition to exclude a lot
from the request. Ms. Hair stated the Planning Commission could choose to exclude
a lot in their conditions for the Conditional Use Permit.

Commissioner Franusich inquired where Mr. Blubaugh'’s lot is located in relation to
the lots of the request. Commissioner Powers showed which lot this was.
Commissioner Powers stated if the Planning Commission were considering
conditioning to exclude a lot, it could be the lot adjoining Blubaugh’s property.
Commissioner Franusich inquired if Mr. Blubaugh’s lot is the only one being
affected. Commissioner Sowers stated Mr. Blubaugh’s lot is the only one with an
existing home built. Chairperson Moore stated future residents doing their due
diligence would know of the potential of a projection so close to their home, but in
this case the home is already constructed.

Commissioner Collins inquired if the applicant would accept the one lot being
excluded. Mr. Conner stated Mr. Blubaugh'’s lot would still remain the same and the
main body of the new house would still have the same setback, but any projections
would overhang. Commissioner Franusich inquired if the applicant was also asking
for a 10 foot setback. Ms. Hair stated the applicant is requesting a 10 foot setback
from the street on the corner lots only.



August 3, 2015 page 10

Discussion by Planning Commission — (continued).

Mr. Robertson stated he would be willing to exclude the fireplace on the lot in
question but the eaves on top of the roof does give a nicer feel to the neighborhood.
Mr. Conner stated when they were looking to crack the language for how that was
written it was taken straight from Blacksburg's ordinance and that is how it is by-
right. Mr. Conner stated the proposal is to maintain the exterior wall of the house at
the setback but allow for up to a 2 foot overhang.

Commissioner Powers inquired about the width of the lots. Mr. Conner stated the
lots are about 50 feet. Commissioner Powers inquired about the width of the homes
to be built on those lots. Mr. Conner stated the width of the houses would be 40 feet.

Commissioner Powers clarified the homes would then have a 5 foot side setback.
Mr. Conner confirmed this would be correct. Commissioner Powers stated if the 2
foot projection were permitted, there would only be a 3 foot setback on both sides.
Mr. Conner stated this was correct and there was no issue with any fire code for
different types of materials or construction methods. Mr. Robertson stated this case
of a 3 foot setback on a side would only be when a fireplace is placed on the side of
a home. Commissioner Powers stated he was assuming that the eaves would be
projecting y regardless of which side the fireplace is on. Mr. Robertson stated the
eaves would overhang 8 inches regardless of the fireplace.

Chairperson Moore stated there is the option of having just an 8 inch overhang for
the lot is question and not have a fireplace projection adjoining Mr. Blubaughs
property lot. Commissioner Powers inquired if the wording of the proposed
conditions could be reviewed. Commissioner Powers stated was under the
impression the request was for up to a 2 foot projection regardiess. Chairperson
Moore stated this was correct but the Planning Commission could provide wording
regarding a specific lot.

Commissioner Powers inquired if the applicant is requesting a 2 foot projection for
everything, whereas the eaves are only projecting 8 inches from the structure. Mr.
Conner stated the request is for a 2 foot projection to allow flexibility for eaves,
fireplaces and other potential projections. Mr. Robertson added the 2 foot projection
allows for a side fireplace on the homes because it is a cantilever fireplace that does
project 2 feet from the structure.

Commissioner Franusich inquired how far the fireplaces project from the home. Mr.
Robertson stated the fireplaces project 2 feet from the home. Commissioner Powers
inquired about placing the fireplaces on opposing sides from one another. Mr.
Robertson stated the fireplace would project 2 feet from the home regardless of
location. Commissioner Powers inquired if the fireplace could be placed on the
opposite side of the new home to not interfere with the existing home. Mr. Robertson
stated he would be agreeable to excluding the fireplace from the side adjoining the
existing home.



August 3, 2015 page 11

Discussion by Planning Commission — (continued).

Commissioner Collins inquired if the Planning Commission would be voting on this
public hearing tonight. Chairperson Moore stated the Commission would not be
voting on the request tonight.

Commissioner Franusich inquired if there was a variation for the front setbacks on
the single-family homes. Ms. Hair stated this is not required for single-family homes.
Mr. Conner stated this development has a 10 foot front setback

Commissioner Powers requested staff draft a condition for just that one lot to have
exceptions for the eaves but not the fireplace. Ms. Hair stated she would draft a
condition.

Chairperson Moore closed the discussion for the Conditional Use Permit
amendment. Chairperson Moore moved the discussion on to the ordinance
amendment for to the Town Code and the proposed rezoning.

Ms. Hair stated she has met with Mr. Semones and Administration to discuss this
type of Code amendment because it can apply to other requests. Ms. Hair stated
other properties, such as the former School Board office on Junkin Street, could use
a similar process to redevelop it. Ms. Hair added a Conditional Use Permit would still
be required for a Planned Housing Development where Planning Commission and
Town Council can limit the number of units or provided other conditions.

Commissioner Powers asked what the maximum density is for the existing R-3
District. Ms. Hair stated it is 10 units per acre for R-3. Commissioner Powers asked if
the 10 units per acres depended on what type of unit it is. Ms. Hair stated
apartments allow 12 units per acre but otherwise development is restricted to 10
units per acre.

Commissioner Collins inquired how many parking spaces would be provided for the
proposed development. Mr. Semones stated the development would meet Town
Code standards. Mr. Semones added the development would provide some
garages as well.

Commissioner Franusich stated he would like to see what other communities have
as far as density goes and what that density would look like. Commissioner Powers
stated the Commission could probably take a look at Blacksburg for some examples
of 20 units per acre. Ms. Hair said she would look back at the Megabuilders request
because this approved development had a large number of units.

Chairperson Moore asked if there was anything else needed to be addressed. With
no further comments Chairperson Moore moved the discussion to the Conditional
Use Permit for the Planned Housing Development.



August 3, 2015 page 12

Discussion by Planning Commission — (continued).

Commissioner Beasley inquired if the Town was conducting the traffic study. Ms.
Hair stated a consultant is conducting a traffic study with the development of the
future Town park. Ms. Hair added the traffic study was to be conducted while both
area universities were in session. Commissioner Powers inquired if the study would
include Stafford Drive, the future connector route and Quin W. Stuart Blvd. Ms. Hair
stated she assumed it would include all those factors. Commissioner Powers stated
the study should look at all of it since it is part of the bigger issue. Commissioner
Powers stated during the public hearing for the single family development, the traffic
was to be revaluated once construction was completed.

Commissioner Huppert inquired if there is a completion date for the traffic study. Ms.
Hair stated she was not aware but the study is underway.

Commissioner Powers stated the traffic study is an important issue to consider with
the traffic impact of the single family homes as well as these proposed units. Ms.
Hair stated with the development of the Town park and these residential
developments, traffic is being considered by the Town.

Commissioner Franusich inquired about the entrance for the proposed development
and noted there is not a curb cut to accommodate a left turn onto Quin W. Stuart
Blvd. Mr. Semones stated the entrance is allowing right turns in and out only.

Commissioner Franusich expressed concerns about forcing traffic onto Stafford
Drive because it is narrow. Mr. Semones stated the portion of this request fronting
on Stafford Drive will be dedicating right-of-way for future widening purposes.

Commissioner Huppert requested information regarding the traffic study for the next
Planning Commission meeting. Ms. Hair stated she would hope to have that
information beforehand in their agenda packets to review.

Commissioner Powers stated he wanted to discuss the sidewalks and noted Quin
W. Stuart Blvd currently has a nice pathway. Commissioner Powers inquired if the
developer would be providing connections and extensions of the pathway. Mr.
Semones stated sidewalks are included within the development and a paved trail is
provided along Quin W. Stuart Blvd. Commissioner Powers inquired about the width
of the paved trail. Mr. Semones stated that the trail shown already exist and is 8 feet
wide. Mr. Semones stated the sidewalks will be 5 feet wide.

Commissioner Powers stated the buildings appear to be very close together. Mr.
Semones stated the buildings are close together to keep parking interior to the
development. Mr. Semones added this is to limit disruptions to the residents at the
Villas at Peppers Ferry.



August 3, 2015 page 13

Discussion by Planning Commission — (continued).

Commissioner Peeples inquired the units would be for rent or lease. Mr. Semones
stated the units would be for lease.

Commissioner Johnson inquired if dumpsters would be used for trash collection. Mr.
Semones stated dumpsters would be used and detailed the location of dumpsters
and recycling center on the Master Plan.

Commissioner Powers inquired how the student population will be regulated.
Commissioner Peoples stated the Fair Housing Act will not allow discrimination
against students, so the lease can require whoever qualifies for to rent the property
must reside on the property. Mr. Robertson stated the lease would mandate the
person who qualifies for the apartment would have to be a resident there.

Commissioner Powers stated the applicant has mentioned having onsite
management which was of interest and also referred to the development a class-a,
luxury apartments. Commissioner Powers inquired about further description of a
class-a, luxury apartment. Mr. Robertson stated he could send him the description
regarding that since he did not have it with him.

Commissioner Powers stated he is interested in regulating who will live in the units,
requiring onsite management, and having the development as class-a apartments.
Commissioner Powers would be interested in seeing these recorded in their proffers.

Chairperson Moore stated this could possibly be something for the applicant to work
with staff to find the correct language that they consider at the next Planning
Commission Meeting. Mr. Semones asked if the Planning Commission would like to
see those as a proffer or as conditions. Chairperson Moore stated it could be as a
condition.

Commissioner Powers stated if these items were made as a proffer, they applicant
would be offering those items, but a condition, it the Planning Commission would be
requiring the developer to do them. Commissioner Powers stated if it is something
he would like to see these items as a proffer, since the applicant has verbally offered
the items. Chairperson stated the proffer statement can be amended bore the
Town Council Public Hearing

Chairperson Moore asked for any other questions or discussions and any additional
information they need the applicant to bring forward.

Commissioner Powers stated if these items were made as a proffer, they applicant
would be offering those items, but a condition, it the Planning Commission would be
requiring the developer to do them. Commissioner Powers stated if it is something
he would like to see these items as a proffer, since the applicant has verbally offered
the items. Chairperson stated the proffer statement can be amended bore the
Town Council Public Hearing



August 3, 2015 page 14

Discussion by Planning Commission — (continued).

Chairperson Moore asked for any other questions or discussions and any additional
information they need the applicant to bring forward.

Commissioner Powers stated there is nothing from the applicant but the traffic study
is needed. Ms. Hair stated she would get that information to the Planning
Commission as soon as possible.

With no further comments Chairperson Moore moved on to address the next item.
Chairperson Moore asked if there were any other questions to be asked.
Chairperson Moore inquired about increasing the building height from 35 feet to 40
feet. Ms. Hair stated she did not believe 40 feet would be an issue for the Fire

Department but she would pass it along to the Fire Chief.

Other business.

Ms. Hair reminded the Planning Commission the Development Subcommittee would be
meeting on the Wednesday August 5" at 8:30 in the morning. Ms. Hair stated she would
not be in the office for the next Planning Commission meeting on August 17", 2015. Ms.
Hair stated Sara Morgan would be present and would be well prepared for the meeting.

Commissioner Peeples asked for an update on the issues with screening for the
Conditional Use Permit for Mr. Anderson’s towing company.

Ms. Hair stated the certified letter was returned because it was unable to be delivered.
Ms. Hair explained the Town has resent the letter. Ms. Hair added she had spoken with
the property owner and they are aware of the situation and they are looking at their
options. Ms. Hair stated she suggested fence slats but it was up to them on what they
wanted to do. Ms. Hair added Mr. Anderson had not reached out to her. Ms. Hair stated
the Commissioners would be updated.

There being no more business, Chairperson Moore adjourned the meeting at 8:32 p.m.

(CP ﬁh/ Auchold

=

Craig MOOVéj, Chairperson Nichole Hair, Secretary No"'o'"

i
v




